
MAYOR 
Joe Purcell 

POLICE CHIEF 
Paul M. George Jr. 

She &hi of PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 

Moniatta 

Michael Hurff Jr. 

FINANCE OFFICER/CITY CLERK 
Andrew Lehr 

The City of Hardin is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

Council Meeting 
of Tuesday December 19, 2023 

Held by virtual meeting and the Public is invited to attend in person. 

Topic: City of Hardin Council Meeting — 12/19/2023 
Start Time: 6:30 p.m. Mountain Time 

Council Meeting — 6:30 p.m. 

The meeting will open at 6:15 p.m. 

If you will be logging into the Council meeting by: 

Computer: Please identify yourself by submitting your first and last name by using the "Chat" function. 

Phone: Please identify yourself by stating your First and Last Name. 

City of Hardin is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/9897104479 

Meeting ID: 989 710 4479 
One tap mobile 

+17193594580„9897104479# US 
+12532050468„9897104479# US 

Dial by your location 
+1 719 359 4580 US 
+1 253 205 0468 US 

+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

+1669 444 9171 US 
+1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 

+1 309 205 3325 US 
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 

+1 360 209 5623 US 
+1 386 347 5053 US 
+1 507 473 4847 US 
+1 564 217 2000 US 

+1 646 558 8656 US (New York) 
+1 646 931 3860 US 
+1689 278 1000 US 

+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
+1 305 224 1968 US 

Meeting ID: 989 710 4479 
Find your local number: https://u502web.zoom.us/u/kdYSyhPxWF 

City of Hardin 406 N Cheyenne Hardin MT 59034 Phone (406) 665-9292 Fax (406) 665-2719 



AGENDA 

December 19, 2023 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER AT 6:30 P.M. 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

The City of Hardin 

406 N. Cheyenne Avenue 
Hardin, MT 59034 

ROLL CALL: Mayor: 
Alderpersons: Steven Hopes   Clayton Greer  Chris Sharpe 

Rock Massine   Jeremy Krebs   Antonio Espinoza  

CONSENT AGENDA: 
Council Meeting 12/05/2023 Closed Meeting 12/05/2023 
Claims 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

MAYOR: 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
• Personnel Committee/City Policy: Mayor 
• Sewer & Water: Massine 
• Law Enforcement: Espinoza 
• Streets & Alleys: Hopes 
• Parks & Playgrounds: Krebs 

• Finance/Landfill: Greer 

• Resolutions and Ordinances: Sharpe 

SPECIAL COMMITTEES: 
PETITIONS & COMMUNICATION: 

o City-County Planning Board Minutes of November 13, 2023 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

NEW BUSINESS: 
• City-County Planning Board - Letter of Recommendation: 

o Maverik Zone Change Application 
o Maverik Variance Application 
o Maverik Annexation Application 

• Stahly Engineering - Proposed Project Options - HB355 

STAFF REPORTS 
• Public Works: 
• Finance: 
• Police: 
• Legal: 
• Economic Development: 

RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 
Resolution NO. 2355: Approving Applications for License to Serve Beer, Beer and Wine or Liquor 

ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
City Offices will be Closing at 12:00 p.m. on Friday December 22, 2023 & 
Closed Monday, December 25, 2023 for Christmas Day & Monday January 1, 2024 for New Year's Day 

Alley Clean-Up - December 26th to December 29t11 (please have items out early December 26th) and 
Christmas Tree Pick-up - January 2nd to January 5th 

Liquor Licenses are due by 12:00 noon Friday, December 29th 
Business Licenses and Pet Licenses are due by February 1, 2024 

Call for Bids for The City and the Hardin Volunteer Fire Department - SCBA's - are due January 9, 2024 
by 3:00 p.m. 

City of Hardin Job Openings: Full time positions: Police Officers, School Resource Officer, and Maintenance Worker 
I. Positions are open until filled. 

Swearing in of Elected Officials 

Meeting adjourned at P.M. 

Additions to the Agenda can be voted on by Council to add to the Agenda for the next Council meeting. 
Agenda items will need to be submitted by Wednesday noon before a Tuesday Council meeting. 

Page 1 of 1 



December 5, 2023 - Minutes 

THE COMMON COUNCIL 
CITY of HARDIN, MONTANA 

COUNCIL MEETING: The Regular Council Meeting for December 5, 2023 was called to 
order at 6:30 p.m. Mayor Joe Purcell presiding by reciting the Pledge of Allegiance. 

The following Aldermen were present: Steven Hopes, Clayton Greer, Chris Sharpe, Rock Massine, 
and Jeremy Krebs. Antonio Espinoza was not present. 

Also present: Finance Officer/City Clerk Andrew Lehr, Public Works Director Michael Hurff, Jr., 
Deputy City Clerk Angela Zimmer, City Attorney Jordan Knudsen and Police Chief Paul George, 
Jr. 

Also present physically and by Virtual Meeting: Members of the public. 

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETINGS & CLAIMS: Greer made the motion to approve 
the Council minutes for November 21, 2023 with a correction to who closed the meeting. Motion 
seconded by Hopes. On a voice vote the motion was unanimously approved. Sharpe made the 
motion to approve the Resolutions or Ordinances meeting of November 21, 2023. Motion seconded 
by Hopes. On a voice vote the motion was unanimously. approved. 

Greer made a motion to approve the claims for December 5, 2023. 

CLAIM No. Monthly Total 

September, 2023 30437 2,532.81 

November, 2023 30423-30436, 30438-30460, 
30464-30478 84,166.47 

December, 2023 30461-30463 77,212.50 

Claims Total (Expenditures 163,911.78 

November Payroll 201,685.55 

Total Submitted 365,597.33 

Hopes seconded. On a voice vote, the motion was unanimously approved. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Laurie Tschetter voiced her concern of receiving a certified letter regarding a complaint she 

made about a neighboring property that is outside of City limits. She added she is not happy with 
the community decay; there is a problem there. Tschetter noted she would like to see it addressed 
and she doesn't know what we can do. Massine asked Knudsen if it is something that can be 
addressed. Knudsen referenced Title 45 of MCA adding he will look into this. Additionally, 
Tschetter asked for something to be done about the Stockton Oil mess. Mayor Purcell noted code 
enforcement is working on this. 

Funke asked why it is the City's responsibility to get a School Resource Officer for the 
School District. Mayor Purcell reported the School pays a hundred percent for the position. Funke 
voiced his concerns of multiple vehicles in his neighborhood, of potholes, garbage collection, ice 
removal, alley clean-up and street lights on Center Avenue. He added the number one concern in 
this town is safety. 

MAYOR: 
Mayor Purcell congratulated the Hardin Volunteer Fire Department; they were nominated by 

employees at Stanley and Black and Decker to receive a donation of Dewalt tools in honor of First 
Responders Day. 

1 of 4 



December 5, 2023 - Minutes 

Mayor Purcell reported the National Conference of Montana League of Cities and 
Towns was educational; he learned of federal funding opportunities that may be available 
to the City. 

Mayor Purcell noted that he, Hurff, and Lehr met with Stahly Engineering to 
discuss HB 355 that was passed by the Legislature. The bill awards cities and towns 
money based on population. Hardin will receive around $285,000. Dax Simek will 
provide a project list to Council at the next meeting to propose project options for Council 
discussion. 

Mayor Purcell extended a "Thank You" to the City Crew for installing the flags 
and banners and for putting up the Christmas Tree and decorations. He also extended a 
"Thank You" the Hardin Police Department for participating in the services for Sheriff 
Darrell King. 

Mayor Purcell voiced he wanted to reach out and thank the Landfill, Waste Water 
and Water Treatment Plant employees for all of their hard work. 

Personnel Policy/City Policy: 
Mayor Purcell reported the City has job openings for Police Officers, Maintenance 

Worker I, and a School Resource Officer (SRO). 

Sewer & Water: 

Law Enforcement: 

Streets & Alleys: 

Parks & Playgrounds: 

Finance/Landfill: 

Resolutions & Ordinances: 

SPECIAL COMMITTEES: 

PETITIONS & COMMUNICATIONS: 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
Knudsen reviewed the "clean" draft Farm to Market Agreement. He noted a 

correction to be made on page three, paragraph three where the culvert will be the 
responsibility of the City and not the County. Massine noted Railway is getting really 
bad; twice as bad as a month ago. Hopes voiced the part of the road that has drainage is 
falling apart first. Krebs asked if the City would be responsible for Railway. Knudsen 
noted that is the County's proposal. Sharpe motioned to move subsection 5 of Section 4 
Railway Street between Highway 313 (Mitchell Avenue) and Center Avenue from the 
City obligation to the County obligation. Greer seconded. On a voice vote the motion 
was unanimously approved. 

NEW BUSINESS: 
Mayor Purcell recommended approval to appoint Joe Connelly to the City-County 

Planning Board. He added Connelly will benefit the board being the City Code 
Enforcement Officer; he has knowledge to help with zoning, etc. Greer motioned to 
approve the appointment. Sharpe seconded. On a voice vote the motion was unanimously 
approved. 

Krebs motioned to approve the appointment of Corrina-Kirschenmann-Kuntz to 
serve on the City-County Planning Board as the City Council appointment. Hopes 
seconded. On a voice vote the motion was unanimously approved. 

2 of4 



December 5, 2023 - Minutes 

Krebs motioned to approve the Landfill agreement with Northern Cheyenne. Massine 
seconded. On a voice vote the motion was unanimously approved. 

STAFF REPORTS: 
Public Works: 

Hurff reported plans are being drafted for a concrete slab at the sand shed, he is looking to 
receive a quote for a pole barn estimated around $59,000; and the culvert for Center and Railroad 
has been ordered. Pink Hill is looking to install the culvert in the Spring. 

Hurff reported Damschen visited the Landfill and he will provide a more detailed drawing 
of the dirt moving process and TCT is working on a fiber project in town. 

Rob Bryson, local resident, suggested to visit with the superintendent in Colstrip to look at 
their sand shed and how it was constructed. Mayor Purcell noted he and Hurff will look into it. 

Finance: 
Lehr reported he hasn't received the contract for the Lodge Grass ARPA (American Rescue 

Plan Act) funding; he is looking to receive it soon and bring it before Council for approval. 

Police: 
Police Chief George reviewed calls for service. He announced Officer Dave Weer graduated 

from the MLA Academy. 

Chief George noted the department was assigned kids from the Department of Child 
Protective Services and there is a need for clothing and unwrapped gifts for males and females ages 
from infant to eighteen years old. He added donations can be brought to the Police Department and 
the deadline is the 13th of December. 

Legal: 
Mayor Purcell approved a request by Knudsen to hold a brief closed session following the 

Council Meeting. 

Economic Development: 
Tina Toyne reported she is waiting to hear about the CDBG Planning Grant from the 

Department of Commerce for housing needs throughout the County. She noted there is a need for 
new studies, assessments, to be eligible for funding in the future. Toyne reported two individuals 
from LISC, a company working with them for the HUD TA assistance, have interviewed fifteen 
people about their concerns, ideas, and suggestions for the City of Hardin and Big Horn County 
and they will provide a summary report. She noted she has been participating in multiple business 
attraction meetings. 

RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
Mayor Purcell announced the following: 

The City Christmas Party is scheduled for Wednesday, December 13, 2023 at 6:30 pm. No business 
will be conducted, but there is a possibility for a quorum to be present. 

City Offices will be Closing at 12:00 p.m. on Friday, December 22, 2023 & will be Closed on 
Monday, December 25, 2023 for Christmas Day & Monday, January 1, 2024 for New Year's Day. 

Alley Clean-Up is scheduled for December 26th to December 29th — please have items out early 
December 26t1i. 

Christmas Tree Pick-Up is scheduled for January 2, 2024 to January 5, 2024. 

2024 Liquor License Applications are due by 12:00 p.m. December 29, 2023. 

Swearing-In of Elected Officials is scheduled to be held after the Council Meeting of December 19, 
2023 

Mayor Purcell announced the following job openings: Full-time positions — Police Officers, School 
Resource Officer (SRO) and Maintenance Worker I. All positions are open until filled. 

3 of 4 



December 5, 2023 - Minutes 

Krebs motioned to adjourn the meeting at 7:37 p.m. Massine seconded. On a voice vote the motion 
was unanimously approved. 

CLOSED MEETING requested by Knudsen. The meeting opened at 7:39 p.m. Greer motioned 
to adjourn the meeting at 7:48 p.m. Hopes seconded. On a voice vote the motion was unanimously 
approved. 

Joe Purcell, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Andrew Lehr, Finance Officer/City Clerk 

4 of 4 



Month 

&tip of Ma/din 

Submitted for Approval 

December 19, 2023 

CLAIM No, 

November, 2023 

December, 2023 

TOTAL Submitted 

Monthly Total 

30479-30481, 30483-30494, 30511-30514 $ 147,244.32 

30482, 30495-30510 291,222.59 

$ 438,466.91 

Claims or Expenditures over $5,000 
per Resolution #2189 

Vendor Purpose Check # Amount 

STAHLY ENGINEERING & ASSOCIATES INC Phase II WW Upgrade Engineering 39880 22,415.33 

RATCO LLC Utiliity box for water distribution vehicle 39876 9,896.00 

TRANSFERS TO BOND TRUSTEE 
US BANK NATIONAL ASSOC November taxes transferred to trustee 39865 267,507.59 

Approved Previously Meeting November 7, 2023 
ENTERPRISE FLEET MANAGEMENT 4 Dodge Durango police vehicles -99743 87,228.76 

EXEMPT from Resolution 2189: 
NORTHWESTERN ENERGY Electric Utilities 39858 19,395.14 

Page 1 of 1 



CITY OF HARDIN 
Claims Report 

For the Accounting Period: November, 2023 

Vendor Claim # Check Amount 

BIG HORN COUNTY TREASURER CL 30479 39863 4,652.70 
ANGELA ZIMMER CL 30480 39850 930.12 
KRISTI WEDEL CL 30481 39856 211.32 
360' OFFICE SOLUTIONS INC CL 30483 39848 807.13 
AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING CL 30484 39849 395.07 
BIG HORN COUNTY ELECTRIC CL 30485 39852 4,992.36 
BILL'S AUTO PARTS CL 30486 39854 1,188.11 
HARDIN DO IT BEST CL 30487 39855 562.16 
ST Vincent Occupational Healthcare CL 30488 39859 30.00 
UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOC. CTR. CL 30489 39862 32.97 
THE ORIGINAL BRIEFS CL 30490 39861 615.20 
MT DEPARTMENT OF ENVPRONMENTAL QUALITY CL 30491 39857 2,604.00 
APG YELLOWSTONE NEWS GROUP CL 30492 39851 62.83 
NORTHWESTERN ENERGY CL 30493 39858 19,395.14 
ENTERPRISE FLEET MANAGEMENT CL 30494 -99743 87,228.76 
VERIZON WIRELESS CL 30511 -99742 606.43 
NEWMAN SIGNS INC CL 30512 39879 52.69 
STAHLY ENGINEERING & ASSOCIATES INC CL 30513 39880 22,415.33 
STAHLY ENGINEERING & ASSOCIATES INC CL 30514 39881 462.00 

147,244.32 

Page 1 of 3 



CITY OF HARDIN 
Claims Report 

For the Accounting Period: December, 2023 

Vendor Claim # Check Amount 

STATE OF MT, DEPT OF REVENUE CL 30482 39860 280.00 
MT DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION CL 30495 39864 1,700.00 
US BANK NATIONAL ASSOC CL 30496 39865 267,507.59 
KEN WOODY CL 30497 39866 893.00 
COLSTRIP ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR CL 30499 39867 50.00 
YOUR HOME IMPROVEMENT COMPANY CL 30500 39868 50.00 
CIRCLE OF LIFE CL 30501 39869 50.00 
AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING CL 30502 39870 500.00 
BIG SKY FIRE EQUIPMENT CL 30503 39871 70.00 
LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, LLC CL 30504 39872 481.32 
DIS TECHNOLOGIES CL 30505 39873 1,001.80 
FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC CL 30506 39874 4,097.70 
GRAINGER CL 30507 39875 94.38 
RATCO LLC CL 30508 39876 9,896.00 
RATCO LLC CL 30509 39877 4,300.00 
BIG HORN COUNTY CL 30510 39878 250.80 

291,222.59 

Page 2 of 3 



CITY OF HARDIN 
Check Report 

12/19/2023 

Vendor Claim # Check Amount 

3600 OFFICE SOLUTIONS INC CL 30483 39848 807.13 

AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING CL 30484 39849 395.07 

ANGELA ZIMMER CL 30480 39850 930.12 

MG YELLOWSTONE NEWS GROUP CL 30492 39851 62.83 

BIG HORN COUNTY ELECTRIC CL 30485 39852 4,992.36 

BILL'S AUTO PARTS CL 30486 39854 1,188.11 

HARDIN DO IT BEST CL 30487 39855 562.16 

KRISTI WEDEL CL 30481 39856 211.32 
MT DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY CL 30491 39857 2,604.00 
NORTHWESTERN ENERGY CL 30493 39858 19,395.14 
ST Vincent Occupational Healthcare CL 30488 39859 30.00 
STATE OF MT, DEPT OF REVENUE CL 30482 39860 280.00 
THE ORIGINAL BRIEFS CL 30490 39861 615.20 
UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOC. CTR. CL 30489 39862 32.97 
BIG HORN COUNTY TREASURER CL 30479 39863 4,652.70 
MT DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION CL 30495 39864 1,700.00 
US BANK NATIONAL ASSOC CL 30496 39865 267,507.59 
KEN WOODY CL 30497 39866 893.00 
COLSTRIP ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR CL 30499 39867 50.00 
YOUR HOME IMPROVEMENT COMPANY CL 30500 39868 50.00 
CIRCLE OF LIFE CL 30501 39869 50.00 
AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING CL 30502 39870 500.00 
BIG SKY FIRE EQUIPMENT CL 30503 39871 70.00 
LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, LLC CL 30504 39872 481.32 
DIS TECHNOLOGIES CL 30505 39873 1,001.80 
FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC CL 30506 39874 4,097.70 
GRAINGER CL 30507 39875 94.38 
RATCO LLC CL 30508 39876 9,896.00 
RATCO LLC CL 30509 39877 4,300.00 
BIG HORN COUNTY CL 30510 39878 250.80 
NEWMAN SIGNS INC CL 30512 39879 52.69 
STAHLY ENGINEERING & ASSOCIATES INC CL 30513 39880 22,415.33 
STAHLY ENGINEERING & ASSOCIATES INC CL 30514 39881 462.00 
VERIZON WIRELESS CL 30511 -99742 606.43 
ENTERPRISE FLEET MANAGEMENT CL 30494 -99743 87,228.76 

438,466.91 

Page 3 of 3 



CITY-COUNTY PLANNING BOARD PO Box 305 

CITY OF HARDIN/BIG HORN COUNTY HARDIN MT 59034-0305 
Regular Meeting of CCPB 

November 13, 2023 

The regular meeting of the City County Planning Board was called to order by Chairperson Corinna 
Kirschenmann-Kuntz at 7:00 pm on November 13. 2023. Members present were Tina Toyne, Clayton 
Greer, Cyndy Maxwell, Bill Hodges, Dan Lowe and Carla Colstad. Chris Winterrowd stopped in to 
excuse herself because of illness. City Planner, Forrest Mandeville, was not present. 

There was no Public Meeting as there were no matters before the Board. 

The minutes from the previous meeting of October 9, 2023 were reviewed and a motion was made by 
Clayton Greer, seconded by Bill Hodges to accept the minutes as read. Unanimous approval was given. 

The September financial was reviewed and a motion was made by Clayton Greer, seconded by Cyndy 
Maxwell to accept the financial statement. Unanimous approval was given. 

Outstanding bills to be paid were presented to the Board and Clayton Greer motioned to approve with 
Cyndy Maxwell seconding. Unanimous approval was given. 

OLD BUSINESS 

In the continuing discussion of Community Decay it was suggested that Megan Spry, the contracted 
Sanitarian, be asked to attend a Board meeting to offer guidance as to solutions. Bill Hodges agreed to 
contact Ms. Spry to invite her to attend a meeting when she is in our area. 

As per the By-Laws for the Board the corrections made to these were submitted to the Board for final 
approval. Clayton Greer motioned and Tina Toyne seconded the corrections be accepted and the Board 
unanimously accepted the changes as written. 

NEW BUSINESS 

There was no new business to transact. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

There were no public comments. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

KOA campgrounds will be open year-round 
Milk Bucket Bakery is closed 
Wrecked Auto Body is closing 

ADJOURNMENT 

Bill Hodges motioned and Clayton Greer seconded the meeting to be adjourned. Unanimous approval 
was given and meeting was adjourned at 7:45pm. 



CITY-COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 

EWE 
DEC 12 2023 PO Box 305 

CITY OF HARDIN/ BIG HORN COUNTY H HAIUIN MT 59034-0305 

December 12, 2023 

Hardin City Council 

406 N Cheyenne Ave 

Hardin, MT 59034 

Re: Maverik Zone Change, Variance from Driveway Width and Parking Requirements, and Annexation 

To The Council, 

At the December 11, 2023, monthly meeting, and after holding the prescribed public hearing, the City-County 

Planning Board voted to recommend approval of the zone change, variance request, and annexation request 

submitted by Maverik, Inc. 

The subject property is located just north of Interstate-90 on the west side of Highway 47. The property is legally 

described as Tract 2, COS 77 Amended (CO), in Section 14, T 1 S, R 33 E, Big Horn County, Montana. 

The property is currently zoned AO (agricultural open space), and if the request is granted, would be rezoned to 

C2 (highway commercial). The variance would allow an 80-foot-wide driveway and 60 parking spaces instead of 

75. Road dedication and extension of water and sewer is proposed as part of the annexation request. 

At the Planning Board meeting, representatives from the applicant indicated that Maverik does not allow 

overnight parking and does not have gaming in their locations, which are open 24-hours. It was indicated that 

the variance was based on past experiences with trailer turning and parking needs. It was also noted that they 
expect to hire 12-20 employees. 

Public and Board discussion centered around traffic concerns, including current conditions on Highway 47 and 

the width of the proposed access road (Dorn Road). Muddy conditions during construction was also mentioned 
as a concern, to which the applicants indicated that they usually use methods such as cattle guards or, if 

necessary, wash stations to keep from tracking mud out of the construction area. It was noted that the Dorn 
Road shown on the plans may be farther north, and the name should be confirmed, renamed, or differentiated 

through the use of a suffix, such as Loop or South. 

The Planning Board recommended the following conditions of approval for the zone change and variance: 

1. All permitting required by the Montana Department of Transportation shall be obtained. 
2. Dorn Road shall be constructed as required by the City of Hardin and accepted as such by the Public 

Works Department. Construction shall be certified by a professional engineer licensed in the State of 

Montana. The road name should be confirmed or changed as appropriate. 

3. The provision of City Services (i.e. water, sewer) shall be coordinated with and subject to the approval of 

the Public Works Department. 

4. The zone change is effective upon annexation. If annexation is not approved, this zone change and 

variance request are void. 
5. The driveway width variance is subject to City Council approval. 



CITY-COUNTY PLANNING BOARD PO Box 305 

CITY OF HARDIN/BIG HORN COUNTY HARDIN MT 59034-0305 

6. If a variance from parking space requirements is granted, no less than 60 parking spaces shall be 
developed and kept accessible. 

The Planning Board recommended the following conditions of approval for the annexation request: 
1. Water and Sewer service shall be installed at the landowners' expense, and to the approval of the 

Hardin Public Works Department. 
2. A Waiver of Protest as specified in the Application for Annexation, waiving the right to protest the 

creation of certain improvement districts, shall be filed with the County Clerk and Recorder. 

3. Dorn Road shall be built to City standards, except as allowed to be modified by the City Council. Upon 
final inspection and acceptance, the road shall be dedicated to the City. The road name should be 
confirmed or changed as appropriate. 

4. A survey showing the road dedication shall be filed with the County Clerk and Recorder. 
5. The zoning district in effect for the subject property shall be C2-Highway Commercial, pending approval 

of an associated zone change application. 
6. Annexation is effective only upon passage of a resolution by the Hardin City Council providing for 

annexation. 

The Planning Board's recommendation is based on the evidence provided in the application, the staff report, 
and presented at the public hearing. 

Regards, 

Corrina Kirschenmann-Kuntz / F.J.M. 
Chairman 



MAVERIK ZONE CHANGE AND VARIANCE REQUEST — STAFF REPORT 

Date: November 29, 2023 

To: Hardin City/County Planning Board Members 

From: Forrest J. Mandeville, AICP — Planning Consultant 

RE: Maverik Zone Change Application and Variance Request 

Required Planning Board Action: Review, receive public comment at a public hearing, and make a 
recommendation to the City Council. 

Recommendation: Approval Subject to Conditions 

Recommended Motion: Having reviewed and considered the application materials, project 
memorandum, public comments and all of the information presented, I hereby move to recommend 
approval of the Maverik zone change and associated variance request, with the findings and conditions 
included in the project memorandum. 

Project/Application Summary: 

Joshua DeMann of AWA Engineering, on behalf of Maverik, Inc., has applied for a zone change for a 
10.22-acre property located just north of Interstate-90 on the west side of Highway 47. The request, if 
approved, would change the zoning from AO (agricultural open space) to C2 (highway commercial) to 
allow for the development of a new service station. The property is legally described as Tract 2, COS 
77 Amended (CO), in Section 14, T 1 S, R 33 E, Big Horn County. 

The property is currently outside of Hardin municipal limits and annexation is proposed. 

The subject property is owned by Richard and Lynda Dorn and accessed via Highway 47. The applicant 
is proposing Dorn Road, on the north side of the property to provide access to the property. Dorn 
Road would intersect with Highway 47 approximately 580-feet north of the on-ramp with 1-90. There 
is currently an unpaved approach at this location. 

The variance would allow a relaxation of parking requirements, allowing the developer to provide 60 
parking spaces (including fueling stalls, instead of 75 spaces as required by the zoning code. The 
applicant has also requested to be allowed to develop an 80-foot-wide access instead of the standard 
40-foot width. 

1 Maverik Zone Change and Variance 



Required Board Action: 

The City/County Planning Board is tasked with conducting a duly advertised public hearing, 
considering the application, and making a recommendation to the City Council (Common Council). The 
Board's decision must be made within 30 business days of receiving a complete application. 

The City Council, after receiving the Board's recommendation, shall make a final decision on the 
application. The City will send a notice of its decision to the applicant and the Planning Board. 

141mter Alms 

=23 . MINGR suet. I 1 11424 ' 1.1435

mo24 1  
r  

11439 
k 

i 1:1 i '''''''7'1. •..,. , 
.,,,,.... 

YIIE.12 sasarutsm 

ta020 

Lt435 

‘3, 

272 
zunyq. 

I 
J 

1 
I '1

kral 

Subject Property (Blue Outline). The Zone Change, if approved, would be the same as property south 
of the Interstate. 

11437 

1.1442 

1.1441 

4

Arse 

2 Maverik Zone Change and Variance 

i1431) 



Subject Property (Blue) and Vicinity 

Findings of Fact: (Section references are to the Hardin City Code unless otherwise noted) 

Section 11-1-9-2 of the Hardin City Code outlines the processes necessary for a zone change to be 
approved. Municipal zoning is governed in statute by 76-2-301, et seq. State code requires that local 
governments take into consideration during deliberations on proposed zone changes the "purposes of 
zoning" as follows: 

1. Compliance with the Growth Management Plan. The 2009 Growth Management Plan 
identifies a portion of the subject property as "Highway Commercial Area" on the map of 
the "Highway Commercial Planning Area" on page 49 (see map below). The map also shows 
a future frontage road going through the property. 

3 Maverik Zone Change and Variance 



HIGH WAY CO NERCIA L PLANNING AREA 

• .01. 
W U ; NOM j Tx. t 1: * amol 

.••••1 &ow 
— 

&I 4r NMI Elm  
• &ON wow 'ma& moo .10. 

• 
&Ns 

• & 10.1-; FMK 
el IS OM moo. ems& am. ii140. 
.11 11 

tr. 

Northwest Planning Area Map from 2009 Growth Management Plan 

The requested zone change does not appear to conflict with the 2021 Growth Policy and 

Downtown Revitalization Plan, or the 2006 Hardin Industrial Park Master Plan. 

2. Congestion in the streets. The vicinity contains commercial/industrial uses, including service 

stations to the north and east. The zone change would result in additional traffic through 

higher use of the subject property. 
The applicant included a Traffic Impact Analysis which indicated the site would generate 276 

trips during morning peak hours and 270 trips during afternoon peak hours. Approximately 

half of these trips would be inbound and half outbound. The analysis concludes that area 

intersections will operate at an adequate level of service with the development. It is 

recommended that the turn lane and center median be re-striped, and that appropriate 

signage, striping, and pavement markings be provided on Dorn Road and Highway 47. 

The Traffic Impact Analysis was also provided to the Montana Department of Transportation 

(MDT), which has permitting authority on Highway 47. Any recommendation of approval 

should include a condition that any requiring permitting with MDT should be obtained. 

4 Maverik Zone Change and Variance 



Dorn Road should be developed per City of Hardin design standards and accepted as such by 
the Public Works Department. Such acceptance may require certification by a registered 
professional engineer. 

3. Secure safety from fire, panic, and other dangers. The change, if approved, should have 
minimal impacts on safety as long as conditions are imposed requiring road design and 
construction meet necessary requirements. 

4. Promote health and the general welfare. No significant impacts on health and general 
welfare are anticipated if this zone change is approved as long as design requirements are 
met. The State has standards on underground fuel tank design and operation and building 
codes. The State also has requirements for accessing off a state highway. The City will 
require design requirements are met, though variances have been requested to allow for 
less parking spaces and a wider approach onto Dorn Road. 

5 

Tr71 
, 

...orso Mo. 

•"`""ttr2.Y.."= 

"E•7

•ra load 

i k t ir __.__rt • 

• 
7 it. 

ffik„aiagfg* 
osaf.eas----w------ • 

• • ",`""•"" "."""1-

" 

I I 

rnlia. -.1041... •••,. 
owes.,  .u.• • 441417,..< 

Ahr M.,. name ONO 
*vow* 

4.v• ...V 

rake,C.VP 

e> 

-674 -47Pr,7Xif-"4 

Landscape Plan Plan 

rimer SOWED= 

• •••• 
• 

ambor.utrawat 
aro.,

0 „ 
••••0411111M 

'f-

einnAtksl KIPOSA.R 

3•Newo Near 

"." 

E 

Eukaurstwr-mika 
EEzENIT-AF.ei.e.";: triSse 

5. Provide adequate light and air. The zone change should have little to no impact on the 
provision of light and air, if approved. 

Maverik Zone Change and Variance 



6. Prevent the overcrowding of land. The zone change would allow commercial activity on the 

subject property, which could lead to more crowding in the area long term, especially with 
regard to traffic. This may be mitigated through improvements to the road network. 

7. Avoid undue concentration of population. The site is currently zoned for agricultural uses and 

is currently in agricultural production. This zone change would further a trend of gas 

stations/truck stops in the area. 

8. Facilitate the adequate provision of transportation, water, schools, parks, and other public 

requirements. This zone change should have little to no impact of the provision of water, 

schools, parks, and other public facilities. Annexation is proposed and water and sewer will 

be extended to serve the site, per the approval of Hardin Public Works. Transportation 

networks in the area could be impacted due to the increase in traffic (see discussion under 

number 2, above). 

9. Character of the district and its peculiar suitability for particular uses and with a view to 

conserving the value of buildings and encouraging the most appropriate use of land 
throughout such municipality. The site is surrounded by 11 zoning to the north and east, 

which currently contain similar uses. There is some 12 zoning to the north as well, which is 

currently vacant. Land to the west is zoned AO and is in agricultural production. The 

property to the immediate west is owned by the same landowner. Interstate 90 is adjacent 

to the property to the south, and property south of the Interstate is zoned C2 and contains a 

variety of commercial uses. 
Approving this zone change would not be an instance of spot-zoning as the site exceeds the 

minimum zoning district size of 1.928 acres (Section11-1-3). 

Per Section 11-1-1-2.E, the zone change may be applied for in conjunction with the 

annexation process, but an approved zone change will only become effective upon 

annexation. 

Variance Request: 

The applicant has requested variances on access width and parking requirements. The applicant's 

request for an 80-foot driveway width would better accommodate tractor trailer access. The 

relaxation of parking requirements is based on previous parking studies. 

The Hardin Zoning Ordinance, Section 11-1-9-3, requires variance requests to provide (1) Proof that 

the particular property in question is being denied a right under this chapter that is being enjoyed by 

other properties in the same area and zone, and (2) Proof that a variance grant will not be extending a 

special privilege to the subject property or cause what would in fact result in a change of land use not 

allowed in this chapter. 

6 Maverik Zone Change and Variance 



As justification for the driveway width variance, the applicant submitted an exhibit showing similar 
uses utilize a wider driveway (see exhibit below). 

Maverik Sfte - Existing Zone 
AO: 
Proposed Zone C2. 
Max Mowed Driveway 
Width (Zone C2) 40 ft Existing Conoco Flying J 

Zone C2, 
Max Allowed Driveway 
Width (Zone C2) = 40 ft 

Apr ox sr Access WIdth 
(From Scaled Satellite Image) 

Driveway Width Exhibit 
The ability to modify driveway width is specifically reserved to the City Council, and as it is not a 
zoning variance, does not require further discussion by the City-County Planning Board. Section 9-6-6 
of the Hardin City Code states that, "In any commercial and industrial zoned districts, the maximum 
driveway width shall be forty feet (40'), when approved by City Council, and shall be located in 
accordance with City specifications and drawings. The minimum distance between curb cuts shall be 
twenty five feet (25')." Obtaining said variance from the City Council is noted as a recommended 
condition. 

7 Maverik Zone Change and Variance 



Section 11-1-7-2 of the Hardin Zoning Ordinance requires service stations and drive-in restaurants 

provide one parking space per 80 square feet of gross floor area with a minimum of 10 parking spaces. 

The proposed Maverik convenience store would therefore require 75 parking spaces be provided. As 

shown on the site plan, the applicant is proposing to provide 43 automobile parking spaces, five truck 

waiting spaces with a 30-minute maximum wait time, 14 automobile fueling stations, and five 

truck/RV fueling stations, for a total of 67 spaces (some of the submitted material indicates 60 spaces 

will be provided). The applicant bases this request on site-specific factors and the Institute of 

Transportation Engineers (ITE) Parking Generation Manual (5th Edition), which recommends 8.11 

spaces per 1,000 square feet as the peak weekday demand, or 49 spaces for this development. The 

projected peak weekend demand is 5.07 spaces per 1,000 square feet. 

As further justification of the variance, the applicant submitted an exhibit indicating that the existing 

Conoco Flying J currently provides 27 parking spaces instead of the approximately 57 that would be 

required to be provided based on the zoning ordinance. According to information on Montana 

Cadastral, the Flying J was constructed in 1971 and remodeled in 2000. The ordinance allows existing 

non-conforming uses to continue, so long as they are not enlarged. It should also be noted that the 

Flying J appears to utilize an unpaved parking area to the east under the same ownership for 

additional parking. 

If the variance is not allowed, there may be room to provide additional parking on the south or east 

side of the development, though allowance for proper truck turning radii may limit that space. If the 

variance relaxing parking requirements were to be allowed, a condition should require a minimum 

number of spaces be developed and kept accessible. 

8 Maverik Zone Change and Variance 



Parking Variance Support Exhibit 

Maverik Site - Existing Zone 
AO: 
Proposed Zone C2. 
Parking Requirement = 
1 stall/80 s.f. 

Parking Required (per Code) =57 stalls 

Parking Provided =27 stalls 

Existing Conoco Flying 
Zone C2, 
Parking Requirement = 
1 stal1/80 s.f. 

Approx 4,600 s.f. 
(From Scaled Satellite Image) 

Parking Variance Exhibit 

9 Maverik Zone Change and Variance 



Recommendation: 

Based on the findings contained in this report, it is recommended that the City/County Planning Board 
recommend approval of the zone change and variance requests subject to the following conditions: 

1. All permitting required by the Montana Department of Transportation shall be obtained. 
2. Dorn Road shall be constructed as required by the City of Hardin and accepted as such by the 

Public Works Department. Construction shall be certified by a professional engineer licensed in 
the State of Montana. 

3. The provision of City Services (i.e. water, sewer) shall be coordinated with and subject to the 
approval of the Public Works Department. 

4. The zone change is effective upon annexation. If annexation is not approved, this zone change 
and variance request are void. 

5. The driveway width variance is subject to City Council approval. 
6. If a variance from parking space requirements is granted, no less than 60 parking spaces shall 

be developed and kept accessible. 

10 Maverik Zone Change and Variance 



ZONE CHANGE APPLICATION REQUEST FOR 
CITY OF HARDIN, MONTANA 

Name and email of property owner(s) and agents (if any):  Current Property Qwner: Richard A Dorn 
and Lynda L Dorn. rick@dornrealestate.com. Applicant on behalf of Maverik Inc. : Melanie Ruff; melanie.ruff@maverik.com 

Address & phone of property owner(s):  Current Property Owner: 406-861-1002 2680 Overland Avenue, 

Suite F, Billings, MT 59102. Applicant: Maverik, Inc. 185 S. State Street Suite 800, Salt Lake City, UT 84111; 
385-343-4137 

Legal or metes and bounds description of property, tract(s), to be rezoned: Tract 2of Parcel described as: 
IHAT PART OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH. RANGE 33 EAST, OF THE PRINCIPAL MONTANA MERIDIAN, IN BIG HORN COUNTY, MONTANA, DESCRIBED AS 
:EFITIFICATE OF SURVEY #77 AMENDED (CO) ON FILE IN THE OFFICE OF THE CLERK AND RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY, UNDER DOCUMENT #349531 

✓  A scale map showing dimensions, acreage, and location of the property, tract(s), and 
adjacent parcels within 150 feet. 

✓  Attach a list of property owners of record and their addresses within 150 feet surrounding 
the property. 

Present zoning and desired zoning:  Present Zoning: AO; Desired Zoning: 02 

 • Provide an accurate straight-line drawing prepared within thirty (30) days prior to application 
depicting the property, and include a list of names and addresses of all property owners of record 
owning property within 150 feet of the proposed location; and a copy of the geocode map of all 
property owners of record owning property within one hundred fifty feet of the proposed location 
provided by the Montana department of revenue property assessment Big horn office. 

4,0  Show present and desired zoning of the subject tract(s). 

s/  Twelve (12) copies of the zone change application form with accompanying information 
shall be submitted to the City Clerk on the first day of the month prior to the month in which the 
Zoning Commission will hear the application. If the application is not complete its review will be 
postponed one month until all required information is presented. 

The Zoning Commission will notify adjacent property owners of record and advertise and 
conduct a public hearing before making its recommendation to the Hardin Common Council. 

1,./  Review fee: $150.00 (Please make checks payable to: City County-Planning Board) 

I understand the review fee is not refundable and does not constitute a payment for zone change. 
I am the applicant or the authorized agent of the applicant. I understand I must appear before the 
Zoning Commission and the Common Council when my application is considered. All the 
information presented herewith is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Signature of applicant or agent: Date:September 28,2023 



Properties and Owners Within 150 ft 
Assessment Code Property P Owner Address 
00011022100 22-0934-14-2-02-01-0000 Dorn Richard A Bighorn Road, Hardin MT, 59034 
00011022800 22-0934-14-2-01-01-0001 Shirasago Mary F Not Listed 
000T002600 22-0934-14-2-04-01-0000 Morissette Marc 1 Highway 47, Hardin, MT 59034 

22-0934-14-2-05-03-000 PP Hardin Montana Property 1.1.0 1600 N Crawford Ave, Hardin, MT 59034 

0 

000H022800 

OH0220A0 

p fiArd 

Project No. 23-048 

Date 04/28/2023 

Scale NTS 

Drawn By JC 

0001002200 
(Not Within 160 it) 

000T002900 

000H0221A0 

000H022100 

ANNA 
Z010 Arortt Re,f woof/ RtVe So,? ,ke Ural, S4116 

6901) g52.9 • 

I 4t sa2M0 

MVERI 
Hardin, MT 

MONTANA 
CADASTRAL 
PARCEL MAP 

F 

4 



LEGAL DESCRIPTION (PEI TETTE caaktmffmr) 

THAT PART OF SECTION IS TOWNSHET I SOUTH. RANGES:16,51.0F THE 
PRINCIPAL MONEATIA MERMAN, 54 305 HORN COUNTY. MONTANA. DESCRIBE" AS 
CERTIFICATE OF SURvEY WE AMENDED (COI ONES. N TETE OEKC.. TB. 
CLERK AND RECORDER OF SAM COUNTY UNDER 00CIATENT d343S31 

TITLE COMATTMENE CODER NATEER 10514. COMMITMENT DATE APRIL E. FDA 
TITLE GOIAMMENT SEEM BY OLT:TREMBLE-- RATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANy 

SCHEDULE IS PART II EXCEPTIONS FROM COVERAGE 

EXCEPTIONS 1.12 ARE NOTESURVEY EXCEPT-NOUN.% 

ii•ESSMS! 

• ME PIMP .113.11P011 .1.1113 SUNV6,1,01,10 601E00, a,mar Rao atm venakruo. (0225is,wo 
e s) $1016C} MC/POW MO NO MEC. P..C61310 

mot, 01101.11ITY IRE OREM ACCISS 10 Ewe T.Tetwr sr 
AT.. WE OP MI% NW., ACORESE ITS11•06 AyS0/44.0 TO SALM. 0101,1, 
0 he Me 1,116 1.61.13 MAW/ MOS WAS Ng B.... ,  116.001 

r T. 71113 Of .1.110111.,.., TMERE ..10,404.100046.0NTLES 011611.311 Oa ROE SUBJECT PROPIER0 
o ThE 3111116.1.0131TYCONT013• TOTIJ Or 230 ACROS.30,32310 1,101..0.c.69 

0.3 MP OP TOW 1.1.616.110,, 40163.....950.12•Er..00.1010.3.621611134/ 3610 .0.18 WW1 3....610/110110 
I 0 .6 1.16 Of 11... MUD SWF,' TTAERE 11.5.00.311.V.K.64161.06 .18.103:00.0.3,0111.10 101.01.0 

/0[01.0. 1.6 910.0, 1.61.4_ 
J ST 04. TOSE 01.10.0 61•16,1161.1.1.6 V4I30O2PEEXDICO olRECENT.061.0.660.14•LX0ONSTRUCTON 3.1.413 
II AT 114/0114 0111. FELD SURWETT1•11.1.301.0101.613C10.10........1.000, 0C440 

183.1.46 WOW W. 6.0101111.0•VT 111.1.16.1100FERN........,..00....5.6...1011.0... Orr OF1410.,3 
Wri.1/60,10V601 
AT R. 10( 01 INS SUONTV1.1111.0.3 54111006(0 110.0•011.10.1/1..100..141.03.113.1.65313 PPM 00.01. 

7447ATEN. amtst OP NO .610 0011680.0.1,14.06E,.....6 1,01... FROMM 6.60•04011.1.031101011. 

0 016/..1.6 6100066.514.11.01....00.6.1.03 .03291.3011.1TV OR 1.110611,6 W0E-W. ORM.. 
113116 POUND 

1.6. 1,012..C1.0.100.0A /.100R 461,1200,06.0 O..= WORT 0.63,1, saw 

ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY OF 
TRACTS 1 AND 2 OF CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY NO. 77 AMENDED (CO) 

LOCATED IN THE SE 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SECTION 14, 
T. 1 S., R. 33 E.. P.M., BIG HORN COUNTY, MONTANA 

l M '12 

0 11 I er'' • 
somme NTS SANNINT 0 wmps 

EMEMP1151171 PEW Sof No mut 
.34.91•616...700 

Or"1:4":47.11,717.11aw""'"'"`" 
' 

100nCoR,OR.P.,611 AREA, 

,0...,5.. -.813 OP 10.1.,K0001,10 

13 RESTRICTIONS IN WARRANTY DEED 'OMAN. SENDER AND NATHERINE SEADM RECORDED APRIL PT. 1045, IN MOE 27 DEEDS. PAGE 52.2. uNDER 00CUTAETIP 
0171967. BUT OMER. ANY COVENANT. CONDITION OR RESENCTON BEEN) CORNICE. OOLOR, RELMION, SEX NANDICAP, FAMLIAL STATUS OR NATIONAL 
ORION TO TEE EMMONS SUCH COVENANES. CONDITIONS OR RESTRECTIONS VIOLATE 42 USC 3934(C). 
EASENNIT fl hlflfllqal&ISST NI NATURE MIN SOME OMAN, OP 00  wownnsurr 01111411111RTIMI OF INNEN 1401111111CM 
ME NANCE PROPERTY POLLS IMMOIL 

II RESERVATIONS IN TINTED STATES PATENT R..41.0.1.1 SEPTEMBER 23 1550 II 50221 29 DEEDS. PAGE 41 UNDER DOCUMENT 4131924 
NOT LOCATED ON NIEJECT PROPERYT 

IS RESTRODONS DI wARRAITEry VETO TO HENRY FRIcm .m REcoaRDED JULY S. MIT. IN BOOK 30 DEEDS. RAGE 304, UNDER DOCUMENT 1134107, SLR OMITENG 
ANY COVENANT. CONOMON OR RESTRICTION BASED ON RAGE. 001.011. RELIGION, SET. HANDICAP, FAMILIAL STATUS. OR NATIONAL ORION TO THE EXTENT ISLET 
SUCH COVENANTS. CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONS VIOLATE 4209030041(11 
EASEENNT IIRIERVATIONS AEI MARINE MINIM OMR MUM OMMALP OF TIME SEORTINEST DINNUNTEIR Of SECTION 14.55014511 
nit SUOJECT PROPINTY PANS INNER 

Is NOTICE OF RN EASETTENT PEW MRIGATION LATERALS AND MATTERS NMENTAL THERETO, CONTAINED Ill WARRANTY DEED RECORDED JULY 9, 1941 IN BOX 
1000(100 PAGE 304 UNDER DOMMENT 0134sor 

EASEMENT INEINTATIONE NW MANNET IN NATURE OVER MUM 01111-11ALP OF MR ONSOUNNER OF SECTION 14, N MEN. 
TIN 54301105 'Komar' FALL* TIMER 

D CHANNEL CHANGE EASEMENT CONDEMNED By JUDGMENT AND FINAL ORDER OF CONDEMNATION IN CI5L CASE 110 Om MG NOM, MONTANA. TN FAVOR OE 
THE STATE of RIONTATIA FOR THE BENEFIT Nab USE OF RS STATE HOME, COMMISSION A CERTIFED COPY OF AND JuOMENT AND FINAL ORDER OF 
CONDEMNATION WES RECORDED JULY M. 19AD. IN BOOK 74 DEEDS, PAGE Mk RECORDS OF BIG HORN. sloNTANA 
ESTINUSIND RINITOF HAP 1011 51150$ IMIELIECT rotaimerrrs SOUTH AND NOT PROPERTY LINE AND ACCESS annual. gs 50000 *50 
NOVEL 

0  ALL MATTERS, COVENANTS. 00100110145. RESTRICTIONS EasEMENTs AND ANY RIGHTS. INTERESTS Olt CLAIMS 0/1104 MAY EXIST BY REASON TREREOF. 
DISCLOSED BY RECORD OF EAMPET REcOlsalr0 JANUARY S. TOTS, AS NSTRuMENT WATER 246E30, ENT OESTING Ally COVENANT, CONOITON OR RESTPACTION 
INDICATIM A PREEERENCE.LIMMTON OR DISCRIMINATION BASED oN RAM, GERM, RELIGION SEX. RAMC* PASTILLAS STATUS, OR NATIONAL ORION TO 
THE WENT MAIM OIDEN(0TS. COMMONS OR RESIN:3MM VIOLATE IA USE SEMIC). 
EASENENTS AM LOCATED OM 00 1105 55515055 AS MOMS IOW MOVED MEE I.

RESTRICTIONS IN WARRANTY DEED TOM HORN MPLENENT CO. A MONTANA CORPORATION, RECORDED APRIL 9. TPA& IN BOOK OE MCI PAGE 220, MIST 
DOCUMENT Mem. BUT WITTING MY cOVENANT. CONDEMNOR RENRICTION BASED ON RACE COLOR RELIGION. SEX HANDICAP. FAMILIAL STATUS M 
NATIONAL GRIM TOPE EXTENT THAT SUCH COVENANTS. COMMONS OR DERNICTIONS VIOLATE 42 USC 30410.4 
EMESTMETE AM LOCATED OM SWUM. PROPERTY AS MOVIE ARID 110101 1105 NIL 

40 NOTICE OF AN EASEMENT FOR ACCESS lb A DITCH AND MATTERS PICESETETAL THERETO. cONTNNEET El WAIMANTY DEED. RMOREIED APRIL 0 ME. Tly BOON 
OF MEL PAGE 290 TINDER DOEXATERT*246943, 
NES IS TIN MN DINNEENT AT INCRENNI N AIN NM ALREADY MEM ANNINIONA 

® ALL MATTEIS. COVENWITS 53110ITIONS. RESTFECTONS, EASEMENTS AND ANY ROMS OSTERESTS OR CLAMS WITCH MET EMT BY MASON IT4ERROF. 
DISOLOSMIN RECORD,. SUNSET RECORDED JANUARY 5.2003. AS MSTRIPAENT NUMBER 3406IS, BUT =STING ANY COVENANT. CONDITION OR RESINIGINM 
NW-AVM A PREFERENCE, LIMITATION OR DISORMINATION BASED RN RACE. 5•042 RELIGION, SEX. HANDICAP. EMAILIAL STATUS OR NATIONAL ORTON TD 
THE EXTF_NT SUCH COVENANTS. GONNTIONS OR RESTRICTIONS 50LATE IA uSC 3604(0) 
INTRACNIENT OF IONMEAY RIONTINNAY TINT IS LOCATED ALONE TIE EAST P5515055 10W OF MENET PROPERTY' AS INCHES ARO 

O
MONO HEIN OIL 

IA EASEMENT FOR ...IWO UTILITIES AND mATTENs INCIDENTAL THERETO GRANTED TO Tye CITY OF HARDIN REGORDED APRs AT 2011, IN 8000 115 ROWE 
102.2, UNDER DOCUNENT.141713 
Easationis Loans OH OWN, MONISTS AS NNW AND INTEE MRS ON 

O Au NATTERS. COvEMBITS. CONDEMNS RESTRICTIONS, EASEMENTS AM ANY ROPES, INTERESTS OR CLAIMS MICH MAY EXIST EN REASON THEREOF. 
DISCLOSED BY RECORD OF SURVEY RECOMED NOVEMBER 0,4014  INSIRSIEENT MEADER 349331. Mil DELVING MN COVENANT, CONDITION OR 
RESTRICTION NOICAING A PREFERENCE. L IMO-ANON OR DISCRIMINATION BASED ON RACE. COLOR. RELIGION. SEX. HANDICAP. FAME. SEAMS. OR NATIONAL 
ORNIN TO NW ExTENT SuCH COvENANTS. CONDITIONS OR REST/DC:DOM VIOLATE ROUSE stiONCT 
MSEMENTS ARS LOOMED NI NNW PROPERTY AS SIENWI ANN NOM NEMO& 

SKIS OF 83/...31.ND 66010•60. 
N0001000,10.4.COORD.N0f 1.16-14Nc6 

PVT. 020.00010111.06 3•01£. 
N06366C0.16101.1010010C 

MO NON!, 6•360 C.C.55001900.6. 
OAK PC PROJ 10 601 

Sr./3.6 fed PEET 
.101, 011.31.0. C0004r3 64/13,T1 ARE 

1113•01131.01ANCESIM6V.4196.101110 
101.0..6,01.106.0.1013,

1101111/113sTAT6 MEREVR6 

Ili ENGINEERS 
PLANNERS 

& SURVEYORS 

CONIANSIONED BY 
flAvERTE 0411 

OWNER OF 5EC003 
RICHARD A. CONNATE) LYNDA L. OORN 

mrau.nw 
Will 050.0VOI4(..fl0054 

01.1/ NAM" 

POLINOSTR611•. 
TWO. 
,60.6.1.3001 

GER/1E103Mo 
OAD#CLXLE000IIITTAAL DOW 04.0, 5150E04 ,16101046A41..15M AM TICREIDIXIRIOLAI
111.110.106.6410...1.1,1141.061, 

11001006.111,....6.6.400.140.0 01,16...11t+ 131.60../...10614 001.0.6.01 
10.1.01.01111NO.14•161:11.1.061011.16000.13.16M. ORO ItM1E6110.VM.0.1110I 
symemen Asornsom Ammo mENArTo wawa. Prpt J • ...R., 3. 411. 61.‘t Mt..* /101 
1 101 I/ 0 RAMO It OF TALE It 114REC0 010TAOEEA.HOETCCFIITODRIIIRTIS NMI 

LAS ,  06118t2D23 

5001 0. LUEBKE SATE OF MAP 
PROFESSIONAL LAND STAINEMR 

MONTANA REGMTRATION NO 132311.0 

EMAIL. INP000EI2NU0,00.1 

(DRESS STONED OR2EOONO DAM/ THTS IS A PREUSSEN., SURVEY 

001441 0020 

2.30111 03,10 

Mazi.-zra, 

RERAN MOO, 

6S003.1666.116.6.08, 1 
/411360C110.31100 0 C)C) 

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY NO. 77 AMENDED (CO) 
R6 Di SOFT 
,26.1•61013. 

r
_20.11/811CUTtrox 0.5,340NT 

4 

10TMCLAC1F•G110.10-111164111
INTERSTATE ROUTE 90 

10•10R0•00/11.1.....00  • 

TRACT 1 
.41.6261010 
061.. 

.1361,4 . 0

OSP: 853 

LEGEND 

• PASTES VT Larr31316 60/161E. 0,11.Pik 

• 1611•101100.0.1PR*3,000 
• POUN3uOr Amur coN,S.TP risCart-Or..0 03.1.41.30 
• FOuros futm yens ELLE "Am fAE Turry-mos 

CERVICJI1e OP SVP,E,0%.6.1 
00) COUR1 ONOEN 

DOC NO 60.1.16.1 PAP. APRON... 00.AD 

56 0000 

Phr 1.110 GURV,Y1.10,0110, 
.1.0.0.10111.1116/11 
1.1.1.01,1,311C 

co, ITENROORAl 

15 1.101.103.3 006000.1.1.11 

1101600001.1.

WA 010, POET) 

£01,13k,31.EPOSTI 

TA. 

EEl 
SI 
II • 

1112f 

MINNINFIN 

. f 
it ";``' 40'00
1, 

, 

• 

- 

- 014.43006•26611,116 
0,05.0.6 

- 600.61. 

  r.,91010.1313110 
tOitoft1.3.111.166.10U1,3111 

411.,1000.0./N ONE 

mamas C1N, OP PANE 

.1012.3.0/.1011061,....... SRL 

- UN3F.GROURO ORM., SEVANI.C./..••Aff 

• 1.00.1.0001113. OPT, tar 

01,61.06,0 v3.1 

13011.0 OWE FENCE 

OFT 

CONTRCL POINT TABLE 

POINT • WARMS 15165ONG 

oast Tossmo Imo TT TOC.

Mel.* NON APO 

0,03 1130.10 2100 6 fr ITC 

21311.1114 6001 0 299/11 

00.0.616 N.00.6.6610.61.600E 

/0.60.14600.1.3•31..i.Cep 

P4226.460501010.1.1..0C141.GRAILOPY036. 

CURRENT POMO 
PE107, Or YIAI0 co0601 0.0•11106.8 /171. 1, 661..3 
EFFECT'. 003 JULYS VW 

60.40 

NOT 5111...3L.904. 

Ert.01100601.11 TWO, 310.0 ON ROM F•103, 

C04.10101 
1101161 NAPA. 

PON 

ewer 
1 Or, 



CITY OF HARDIN 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION 

ECEIVE 

ri OCT 04 2023 

Twelve copies of the complete application for Conditional Use Permit must be 
received by the City Clerk on the first day of the month proceeding the month in 
which the application shall be reviewed by the City County Planning Board (CCPB) 
at its regularly scheduled meeting which is the second Monday of the month. The 
application will not be forwarded for review unless it is complete and the review fee 
paid. The City County Planning Board will advertise and hold a public hearing 
regarding the application, and adjacent property owners of record will be notified of 
the hearing. The City County Planning Board will make a recommendation to the 
Hardin City Council. Tract 2 of Parcel described as: 

THAT PART OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RANGE 33 EAST, OF THE 
PRINCIPAL MONTANA MERIDIAN, IN BIG HORN COUNTY, MONTANA, DESCRIBED AS 
CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY #77 AMENDED (CO) ON FILE IN THE OFFICE OF THE 1. Legal description of property: CLERK AND RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY. UNDER DOCUMENT # 34e51 

2. Address or general location of property: NW Corner Interstate 90 and Montana State Hwy 47 

Agricultural Open Space District (A0)- requesting zone change to C2 - Highway 
3. Existing zontngi Commercial District 

4. Conditional use being requested: Variance on access width, variance on parking requirements 
Requesting 80' driveway width to accommodate tractor trailer access. Current parking requirements (1 
stall per 80 s.f.) would result in 75 parking spaces, previous parking study by Maverik has determined 

5, Reason for request: that 40 parking spaces is adequate for the proposed store footprint and number of fuel pumps. 

6. Possible noise, vibration, air pollution, electrical interference, or other environmental 
impacts that may be generated by the proposed use: 
N.A. 

7. Attach a list of adjacent landowners of record, certified by the County Clerk, within 150 
feet of the property.  List attached - see page 3 

8. Attach scaled drawings of the: 

• A. Subject property, including size, and existing buildings and improvements 

• B . Proposed use, buildings, and improvements 

• C . Adjacent land uses and improvement. 

• D. Existing natural features of the site such as vegetation or wetlands 

✓ E . Off street parking, access, and egress 

✓ F. Landscaping, signs, lighting, and fencing 

Page 1 of 2 
Rev2120 I I 



9. Name of owner of record: 

Richard A Dorn and Lynda L Dorn 

Tele: 

10. Address of owner of record: 

2680 Overland Avenue, Suite F, Billings, MT 59102 

Tele: 

11. Name of applicant: 

Maverik, Inc. 

Tele: 

12. Address of applicant 

185 S State St. Suite 800 Salt Lake City, UT 84111 

Tele: 

13. Other information as may be needed by the City 
County Planning Board 

REVIEW FEE:  $150

Make cheeks pgable to: City County Planning Board 

Melanie Ruff , understand that the filing fee 
PRININAME 

accompanying this application is not refundable, that it pays part of the cost of processing this application, and 

that the fee does not constitute a payment for a conditional review permit. I certify that all information hereon 

and herewith is true and correct, and I understand that I or my agent must appear in person before the City 

County Planning Board and City Council when this application is being reviewed. 

Signature of applicant 

Page 2 of 2 

Date:  September 28th, 2023 

Rev2/2011 



Properties and Owners Within 150 ft 

Assessment Code Property U Owner 

000H022100 22-0934-14-2-02-01-0000 Dorn Richard A 

000H022800 22-0934-14-2- 1-01-00 1 Shirasago Mary 

000T002600 22-0934-14-2-04-01-0000 M rissette Marc J 

000T002800 22-0934-14-2-05-02-0000 #8 Hardin Montana Property LLC 

0001002900 22-0934-14-2-05-03-000 #8 Hardin Montana Property LLC



SUBJECT 
PROPERTY 

NUN 

Mar! ,I411=11 
1111 II 

111111pL 

 MEM 
INEITINEE II: nanarara '41 

gilp ION II meow WM 1 

1151 

LCOTAL DESCRIPTION PER IMF CORANTRENO 

MAT PART OF SECTOR 19, TOWNSHIP 1 SWIRL RANGE 33 EABT. OF ME 
PALINCIPAL MONTANUTERIMAN. BIONCYNCOUILL*. MONTANA. DEW-REED AS 
CERTIRCATE OF SURVEY Ca AMENDED NCO ON FILE NNE OFFICE OF TILE 
CLERK AND RECORDER OF SAD COUNTY. LINDER DOCUMENT • 3.531. 

TIRE COMMENT ORD. NORIDERL 1943530 CORNITMENT ONE APRIL T. 2023 
TITLE CORINIMAENT MIND BT OLD REPUBLIC NATIO/. TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 

SCHEDULE B • PART it MOTTO. FROM COVERAGE 

EXCEPTIONS 1.122110 NOMOURVEY EXCEPTION ITEMS 

On700 

,. o•,..,,,,,..No N,,,,,,,,,,,op.00.o,...,...,,,,floo,.,,,,o.opo,o.,...„..,, . 000 

(:::i SUBJECT PROMO* NeMOOMECI ACCESSOMMENNIMOW 

OUNAMTFOOPORTY Me ONENTAOCEM TO MAW NOMOMorr 

Nt INE WM OF On IMOMMOMMESsmMOMPOOKNOOMMILOMPROPONW 

1 AT MEMO OP OW FOLOMNVOMMME MS NOMUNNOCOSCRWOON OE suaNOT MOWN* 
ji, ..............,-,........w.,....................,,p.s., 

IL IMMINIECT MOM* GOMM A MOO OF 20 0 ACME NMOWSC. FO WM ON MSS 

IS Nem0 No0 m INN 000 Noom omo Nommomoomy,0 pm.. 00 No.N.•0 • Nyo mow moo. mommomoo• 
, moo.. 00 oopocomom moo mo momommorm000m m Nommomo oom, ommomo Norm. 

AMMOOSON TOE WOO* MC. 

it MOE ONE oP OE FO.0 SIONEVINEO WM NO MMOSED pm. v. Dosomm fororMmse •10* .'.  ...,_0 ''''''' 

0 MOOT.. of, To NUM SIONEMNEW INAMROMmimmommomo omecom mouton MOO. cONSMoCrotp on MOOS 

l NO MONOREPONT vON SONNED NT COO. CHEM PROPUM Mom arommloN MosComEMONINE MrOF MOMS 

0  At NE TTAT oF me BANN TALNNALINAORRIXOF ADJACINT PRELFM.s usimmoRivoN RR AM.. °KAN NW Nal. I•.!..▪  ▪.v 

o DURING toe um. Of THANanty NomPS Mem cocooNMPS   
MOM NO fr "'.110 

MASON 

TM MINEM PROMIMANOMOMMOMOOPENTE8 0
WOMMX413 

EatnrONSOMMI 

7 

a coN G.Reaurause. 6104914.0 STANNA IMA AM LRAM. NO REMONNOIM a0 Loam+ o toomossim on MOM 

FORELEMPoocomammaillOPROOMEMOPSAMORomos Mao MONO SOO 
WONONNE COMER 

guru.= =NES PER VAP NURSER 31.113.3.13 IMP 
FE ORM SEPTENBER 1991 

COLMMTe 
Gamma coONY MONTANA moo ara 
NANKOMONMED MOO) 

.a4_XE0. OEN 0000 

zebu.- MEM OF 0930  15004116 

110 OESTOCOONN WAIMANIN -00 COMP* READER AND KATHERINE SEADER. RECORDED APRIL 21, 1945. IN BOOK 27 DEEDS, PAGE 022. UNDER DOCUMENT 
NNW. RAT EMOTING ANY COVENANT, CONDITION OR RESTRICTION BASED DR RACE COLOR. RELIGION. SEX. HANDICAP FARVIIAL STAT. OR NATIO.. 
ORIGIN TOME EXTENT THAT SUOI COVENANTS, CCNDMONS OR RESTRICTIONS VIOLATE 42 USC NONC) 
EASEMENT RESERVATIONS ARE BLANKET IN NATURE OVER SOUTH 014114/ALF OF THE NORTHWEST MIM4UARTER OF SECTION 14, IN WHICH 
THE SUOMICT PROPERLY MIAS INITION. 

14. RESERVATONS IN UNITED STATES PATENT. RECORDED SEPTEMBER:ILL 1400, IN BOOK X13 DEEDS. PAGE 41. UNDER 50000041E131924. 
NOT LOCATED OIL SUBJECT PROPERTY. 

15. RESTRICTIONS IN WARRANTY DEED TONER.. MICKEL, JR., RECORDED JULY 9. 1547,14 BOOK 30 0E000, P400 904, TINDER DOONENTS134407, BUT OMITTING 
ANY CONENANT. CONDITION OR RESTRICTION EASED ON RACE, COLDR, RELIGION RN( HANDICAP, FARRAR STATES. OR NATIONAL ORIGIN 10 THE EXTENT THAT 
SUcti COVENANTS, CONOMCNS OR RESTRIcTONs WOLATE 42 DSC MONO 
EASEMENT RESERVATIONS ARE BLANKET IN NATURE OVEN SOUTH OIMEHALF 00 780 NORTHWEST ONEQUARTER OF SECTION, IA, III MICH 
THE SUBJECT PROWERTY MAX WITHIN. 

IS ROMEO,. EASEMENT FOR RRIGATNN LATERALS AND MATTERS INCIDENTAL THERETO, CONIANED wARRANTY DEED, MCORDED JuLy s 1947, Its BOOK 
30 OEEDS, PAGE 304, UNDER DOCUMENT #134801. 
EASEMENT RESERVATIONS ARE BLANKET IN NATURE OVER $OUTH ONEWALF OF TN. NORTHWEST ONMOUARTINI OF MTH:011KM WHICH 
ONE SUBJECT PROPERTY FA/LS WITHIN. 

C) CHANNEL CHANGE E.**. CONCERNED BY JUDGMENT AND FINAL ORDER OF CANDETANATICT IN CIVIL CASE NO 6130,113 HORN. MONTANA, IN FAVOR OF 
ITIE STATE OF RONTANA FOR ME BENEFIT AND USE DF ITS STATE HIGHWAY COMMISSION. A CERTFIED COPY OF SAID JUDGMENT AND FINAL ORDER CF 
CONDONATION INAS RECORDED JULY 31, 1090. IN BOOK 74 DEEDS, PAG0 540, RECORDS OF BIG HORN RONTANA, 

ESTAWKSHEO RIGHT-OF WAY IJNES MONO SUBJECT PROPERTY'S SOUTH AND EAST PROPERTY IAN AND ACCESS COWL, 0/ AS mom MD 
RIOTED. 

0  ALL MATTERS. COVENANTS. CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS. EASEMENTS AND ANTRAYHTS. INTERESTS OR 01.1I9574113110110 wow By REASON THEREOF, 
DISCLOSED. RECORD OF SUIBET RECORDED JANLANY IL 1175.44 INSTRUMENT NURSER 2060511. BOY DELETING ANY COVENANT, CONDITION ala PESTI.** 
NOICATIMS A PREFERENCE, LINTATION OR DISCRIRINATION e•seooN RACE. COLOR. RELIGION, SEX, HANDICAP, FAMILIAL STATUS. OR NATIONAL ORIGIN TO 
THE EXTENT STION COvENANTS. CotaNTIONS OR RESTRICT°. VIOLATE 42 INC NINO. 

EASEINWITS WM LOCATED ON SUKISCT PROPERTY AS SHOWN ARO NOTED HERM OW e RESTRICTIONS RI VALTRANTY DEED TO BIG HORN INHERENT DO, A MONTANA CORPORATION RECORDED APREL 4, 1975. 114 110011 LI OF MEL PAGE 220 LINDER 
DOOM. Mal. BUT DMITTING ANY COvENANT. COMMON OFT RESTRICTION 00110 014 INCE, COLOR RELINON, SEX, INNGICAP.FANLIAL STATUS OR 
NATIONAL ORIGIN TO THE EXTENT*. RICH COVENANTS. COMMONS OR RESTRICT/OW TOLATE 42 USC 36.CI 

EASEMENTS APE LOCATED ON SUBJECT Intomrry AS MOWN AND NOTED 800 05. 
20. 001200 00 AN EASEMENT FOR ArcASX TORERO. AND MATTERS INCIDENTAL THERETO. CONTAINED IN WARRANT. DEEM RECORDED *PSIS. 1619.04 BOOK 

OF MI, RAGE 220. UNDER DOCINENT NEON. 
WM EERIE BASLE EOCUMEHT AT EXCEPTION IS AND K. ALREADY BEEN ADORESSED. 

0 ALL MATTERS. cOVENANTS. CONDITIONS. RESTRICTIONS, EASEMENTS AND MY RIGHTS. INTERESTS OR CIA. WHICH MAY EMST BY POISON THEREOF, 
DISCLOSED BY RECORD OF SURVEY RECORDED JANUARY 5,2005, AS NSTRUMENT NURSER 300515, BUT DELETNG ANY COVENANT. CONDITION OR RESTRRTION 
INDICATING A PREFERENCE, LINTATION OR DISCRNINATILIN BASED ON RACE, COLOR RELIGION. SEX, HANDICAP. FANUAL STATUS OR NATIONAL °RON YO 
THE EXTENT SKIL COvENANTS. CONDITIONS OR RESTRICTIONSVIOLATE UDC 3501100 
RETNACEMINT OF WORMAII PICHITOPICAS MASKS LOCATED MONO TWO EAST PROPERLY LEW OP WOWS, PROPERTY AS LWOW AND 
NOTED NE. or, 

0 EASEMENT FOR WERANING 010,1505 400 MATTERS INCRTENTAL THERETO GRANTED TO THE 011 00 HARDIN. RECORDED APRL 21, 9011,14 PAM 115. PAGE 
'ORE LADEN EMMERT 11344176. 
EASEMENT LOCATED Oil SULIECT PROPER'," AS mewl MO NOT= HERE OM 

023 ALL MATTERS. COVENPAUSOONDITIONS. RESTRICTIONS. EASEMENTS AND ANY RIGHTS. INTERESTS OR CLAIMS WHICH M. EXIST BY REASON THEREOF, 
DISCLOSED BY RECORD OF SURVEY RECORDED ROVERS. E. RD* AS INSTRUMENT NUMBER 30531. BuT DELETING ANY COVENANT, CaNDINN OR 
RESTRICTION INDICATINO A PREFERENCE LIMITATION OR DISAIRINNATICN BASED ON RACE. COLOR. RELIGION, SEX, HANDICAP. FAMNAL STATUS. CR NATIONAL 
ORIGIN TO THE 0411E90 SUCH covENANTS. CONDITION OR RESTFINTIONS VIOLATE 42 USC 31304103 

EASEMENTS ABS LOCATE") ON SUBJECT PROPERTY AS SWIM AND NOTED NEES ON. 

WOOF MANNOmovoomm. 
0.0CMOIOUNTM COMM.* arrOmm 

SYSO30. MoMCooROMIE OMB. 
NIMOM,EMON MOON* 

06000MNOMMIEDoNNOSSONNOWMON 
OC PNO1 NO WO 

0 

MOM oar. 
UMW PON OIMANCESr coOMMTESSomeNAME 

POMoNemAssofo REFONOMMIWORrt 
80410.4 MHO 

DJ 
&CI 

ENGINEERS 
PLANNERS 
SURVEYORS 

0040RESSIONE0 BY 
00005)0 020 

ONNER OF RECoRD 
RICHARD. DOM AND LYNDA L. OORN 

W ALITIE 
' 

Will .11yo*,••no. . com 

POND REOMMO 
YELLOW PLASOCCM 
102411105 1119441 

Leo STA 
2061.11110,PT, 

CERTIFICATION 
NC.* DoMMO COMM COM. oNsureo. moms( No_ NMONOSECNNSUPECN 01.1)PWLIMJC 
TTLF ANNA. couNArrON.GRA 

10345 

ONSOlocompf MOMS NM ON PLAT NNO SM., ou M. is mom MVP LOON AccONOOKI 
WM ME amOompamlAmooll OEWL MOIMMENTMOO MMTOMMett MIN MUMS. 000Ore 
MOMMODOMMCOTEDOT WON. 09PN MD MOONS ant 0 ow) om MONO/LOW OM 
Imo 13 IN el WM In Or TABLE MEP. - FOLONoMm.0 CONRE*Ommt *WM 

.4.1- Lit 
XIIRT a LUEBKE 
PROFESSIONAL LIND SURVEYOR 
MONTAIN REGISTRATION NO 1323I19 

EMAIL: KURTIRELIANOACOLA 

UNLESS SIGHED. SEALED AND OATEO THIS IS A PREMOLAR,' SURVEY 

0•116/2021 

DATE Of MAP 

PUOIMMITY Mama 

r MONO Nara 

0 

0 

II 

INTERSTATE ROUTE E0 
PRON‘Or WMEMBOONN 
usuL NOW NMI*. em 

LEGEND 

ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY OF 
TRACTS 1 AND 2 OF CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY NO. 77 AMENDED (CO) 

LOCATED IN THE SE 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SECTION 14, 
T. 1 S., R. 33 E., P.M., BIG HORN COUNTY, MONTANA 

AMNSSEMOOMT *ACM 70 
omnoCko 0.4003 c)c)

TRACT 1 
MMOSMF1 

• Nw000rtar F 

O POUN.09 okroo0 MOEN. RON PM 

• 
• 
• 

COS 

ICM 
DOC NO 

CND 

VPC 

01

NeMMLICOMMO Moot*. 

011. 
g 

eR• 

07, Kam 00 

1940

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY NO. rf AMENDED (CO) 
POWWOW 

248.3c:)

0050131111 041 
Request Applies to 
Tract 2 Only 

me* 

*Mao op 533moro 

- - MOGEN, FROPIONPf WON 

FOUND NM MmootWEIN POSMONMe PONsmor - - MOO. omMEMI.02 
EDGE OF ASPHALT 

MONO RESNIMPONNE POMO CAP.MIJMONSON HARE 
Rua RANK*, 
CUM.. tf YAW WADER 
*OM Mom 
DocualENT onwoom so Nom =tore 
RECORDS 

oxpla SUMMOMMONT 

RPEREIALETNYLLATAK 
YOLOWNASAMOP 
anal* NOS TourNONO 

LIONI ONE. anoom LOW 

wmERNYOONN 

80:04.15INGLEPOSO 

51342 (00000 PON* 

NOUN* 

mum 

j

.yAL4*

. ...Wm mt. 
RIlT1100141 

...MM." 

. , 

TRACT 2 
omo r: 

ma MONS 

ECM oF WAN. CONMOD 

 EOM M NMANNO 

mostoconotOuNEvorocoMatoi mbe. 

IMORCOMOUP ONE 

mum. TANN OR ARNE 

IROMMOUNIJNAMPLiNel.WN. 0Iff£112Y 

1.0000GROMO UPON* SPAIN MEM. • MN NM 

mommoon0 MEMNON me 

„..MONNummovEM 

BARBARNREFENcE 

ides 

CONTROL POW TABLE 

AWN • WSLINTIO EASTNO ELEVATION PENCIWOON 

ORR. 2A029. 

CONS 3614X.A0 

MU9.23 

exereTes 

NON. 

MNAT 

WC 

LANNI MS1041 GLO.,59, epc 

C94.00 38350/14 NONNI To OPC 

.00MREIN WINN A ONNEMISTE HWE 

lasvmuNum•Asvaara. 

MovelmoT MM. ORNONAIM 

CIIRRERT FORM 
Num, Tay cove a, MINN. MLE Noma 

RAF.. out Mv wo 

ONwo 

SPINAOW WW1 

&RCM MON, INV 1721 STORES OR -MINT, WET IN, 

ANNICULTINVE. OPEN SAKE oirract 

to ENO I. N. 

ff] II IS RI 

COUNT/ Oi 
AMIE21111. AILINFANA 

NOCE% ENNOWL 
NONT,Na 

MEET 
10i 





-Pt 
ii 

a a - 

N 

Landscape Plan 

Mayer*, Inc. Store 
Dom Road & Highway 47 

Hardin, MT 

ANN 4 
ANDERSON WAPLEN & ASSOCIATES 

PAtE 



DEC 1 2 2023 

MAVERIK ANNEXATION — STAFF REPORT 

Date: November 29, 2023 

To: Hardin City/County Planning Board Members 

From: Forrest J. Mandeville, AICP — Planning Consultant 

RE: Maverik, Inc., Application for Annexation 

Required Planning Board Action: Review, receive public comment at a public hearing, and make a 
recommendation to the City Council. 

Recommendation: Approval 

Recommended Motion: Having reviewed and considered the application materials, project 
memorandum, public comments and all of the information presented, I hereby move to recommend 
approval of the Maverik Annexation request, with the findings and conditions included in the project 
memorandum. 

Project/Application Summary: 

Joshua DeMann of AWA Engineering, on behalf of Maverik, Inc., has submitted an annexation request 
for a 10.22-acre property located just north of Interstate-90 on the west side of Highway 47. The 
property is legally described as Tract 2, COS 77 Amended (CO), in Section 14, T 1 S, R 33 E, Big Horn 
County. 

The subject property is owned by Richard and Lynda Dorn and accessed via Highway 47. The applicant 
is proposing Dorn Road, on the north side of the property to provide access to the property. Dorn 
Road would intersect with Highway 47 approximately 580-feet north of the on-ramp with 1-90. There 
is currently an unpaved approach at this location. 

Water and sewer are in place to the northwest of the property and would be extended across Dorn 
Road to serve the proposed development of a service station and convenience store. There is an 
associated zone change and variance request pending. 

Required Board Action: 

The City/County Planning Board is tasked with conducting a duly advertised public hearing, 
considering the application, and making a recommendation to the City Council (Common Council). The 
City Council, after receiving the Board's recommendation, shall make a final decision on the 
application. 

1 Maverik Annexation 



Findings of Fact: (Section references are to the Hardin City Code unless otherwise noted) 

The subject property is adjacent to water and sewer lines. Service will be needed to provide service to 
the property, the cost of which should be the responsibility of the applicant. The applicant provided a 
cost estimate as part of the application documents indicating the cost of water service would be 
approximately $17,239 and sewer service would be approximately $4,000. 

The stated intent of annexation is to develop an automobile service station and convenience store. A 
zone change, from AO to C2, has also been submitted. The property is adjacent to property that is 
already within the municipal limits of the City of Hardin. 

Section 3-3B-2(C) of the Hardin City Code indicates that one of the purposes of regulations relating to 
the Water Service Area is to "Promote annexation to the corporate City limits of all properties to be 
served with water service from the water supply system". Section 3-3B-7 states, in part, that "It shall 
be the City policy that all properties to be included within the water service area should be annexed 
or an attempt at annexation should be made first and before any water service area enlargement 

application may be considered." 

Subject Property (Blue) and Vicinity 

2 Maverik Annexation 



Section 3-3B-8 requires a "waiver of protest to special improvement districts as they may be created 

for other services or improvements in the area." The applicant has provided as part of the application 

for annexation a waiver of the right to protest the creation of one or more special improvement 

districts for the construction of streets, curbs and gutters, sidewalks, driveways, streetlights, storm or 

sanitary sewer mains, water distribution lines, park maintenance, or other incidental improvements 

that the City may require. This waiver should be filed with the County Clerk and Recorder. 

Section 9-1-4(D) states that if the construction of new curbs and gutters is part of a new annexation, 

subdivision, addition or other similar new development, then the City may order that the property 

owner bear the full cost of the construction of new curbs and gutters as part of the annexation, 

subdivision, addition, or similar planning agreement." The applicant is proposing to construct a new 

road, Dorn Road, which will be built to City standards, including pavement, curb and gutter, and storm 

drainage, though the applicant has requested a variance from driveway width to accommodate 

trailers. The road will be dedicated to the City after acceptance. The applicant also submitted a survey 

creating the new 60-foot wide right-of-way, which will need to be finalized and filed with the County 

Clerk and Recorder. 

Section 11-1-1-2(E) states that "As part of the annexation process, however, if the specific zoning 

desired for the property is known, that zoning can be applied for during the annexation process and 

become effective upon annexation." The property is currently zoned AO Agricultural Open Space. As 

previously noted, an application for a zone change to C2 Highway Commercial has been submitted. 

Pursuant to 7-2-4601, Montana Code Annotated, if the annexation is approved, the City must pass a 

resolution providing for annexation. 

Recommendation: 

Based on the findings contained in this report, it is recommended that the City/County Planning Board 
recommend approval of the annexation request subject to the following conditions: 

1. Water and Sewer service shall be installed at the landowners' expense, and to the approval of 
the Hardin Public Works Department. 

2. A Waiver of Protest as specified in the Application for Annexation, waiving the right to protest 
the creation of certain improvement districts, shall be filed with the County Clerk and 
Recorder. 

3. Dorn Road shall be built to City standards, except as allowed to be modified by the City 
Council. Upon final inspection and acceptance, the road shall be dedicated to the City. 

4. A survey showing the road dedication shall be filed with the County Clerk and Recorder. 
5. The zoning district in effect for the subject property shall be C2-Highway Commercial, pending 

approval of an associated zone change application. 
6. Annexation is effective only upon passage of a resolution by the Hardin City Council providing 

for annexation. 

3 Maverik Annexation 



APPLICATION FOR ANNEXATION TO THE 
CITY OF HARDIN 

RECEI 
OCT 2 3 2023 

BY. 

I. Thirteen copies of this application and all attachments must be prepared and submitted to 
the City Clerk on or before the first working day of the month preceding the month in which the 
City-County Planning Board will hold a duly advertised public hearing, consider the application, 
and make a recommendation to the City Council. Failure to fully complete the application and 
provide all accompaniments will delay the application. 

2. Name of applicant landowner: Applicant on behalf of Maverik, Inc. - Melanie Ruff; melanie.ruff@maverik.com

3. Address and telephone number of applicant: Telephone- Melanie Ruff: 386-343-4137 

Address- Maverik: 185 S State St. Suite 800 Salt Lake City, UT 84111 

4. Legal description of property to be annexed (must be either part of a subdivision or 
certificate of survey):  THAT PART OF SECTION 14. TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH. RANGE 33 EAST. OF THE 

PRINCIPAL MONTANA MERIDIAN, IN BIG HORN COUNTY, MONTANA, DESCRIBED AS 
TRACT 2 OF CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY #77 AMENDED (CO) ON FILE IN THE OFFICE OF THE 
CLERK AND RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY, UNDER DOCUMENT #349531 

5. General location of property to be annexed: Northwest corner of I 90 entrance/exit 

ramp and Highway 47 

6. Attach a map showing parcel in relation to the existing City limits and for at least 300 
feet from the parcel boundary. Include location of existing street(s) and alley(s) serving the 
parcel as well as nearest sanitary and storm sewer, water main, fire hydrant, and utility lines. 

7. What is the cost of extending the services in Item 6, how were such costs determined, 
who will pay for the costs, and what is the timeframe for construction? 

8. Attach a Waiver of Protest (see attached) for recording with the County Clerk and 
Recorder and containing a covenant to run with the land to be annexed waiving all right of protest 
to the creation of any special improvement district to be created thereafter for the initial 
construction or maintenance of any of the following improvements or services: Street grading, 
paving, improvement, or maintenance; curb, gutter, or sidewalk; lighting; storm and sanitary 
sewer; water main; and other improvements deemed necessary by the City Council. 

9. A non-refundable review fee of $150.00 (checks must be made out to Hardin Planning 
Board) must accompany this application. 

10. Signature of applicant:  Date:  10/17/2023

11. Date application received by City Clerk: 162 I 2,5 ZP2 3 

12. Signature of City Clerk: 



WAIVER OF PROTEST 

For consideration of annexation to the City of Hardin, the undersigned, owner of the 
hereinafter described property, does hereby waive the right to protest the creation of one or 
more special improvement districts for the construction of streets, curbs and gutters, 
sidewalks, driveways, street lights, storm or sanitary sewer main serving the area in which 
the annexation is located, water distribution lines, park maintenance, and other incidental 
improvements the City of Hardin may require. 

This waiver shall run with the land and shall be binding upon the undersigned, its 'successors 
and assigns, and the same shall be recorded in the office of the County Clerk and Recorder of 
Big Horn County, Montana. 

The property hereinabove mentioned is more particularly described as follows, to-wit: 

THAT PART OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RANGE 33 EAST, OF THE 
PRINCIPAL MONTANA MERIDIAN, IN BIG HORN COUNTY, MONTANA, DESCRIBED AS 
TRACT 2 OF CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY #77 AMENDED (CO) ON FILE IN THE OFFICE OF 
THE CLERK AND RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY, UNDER DOCUMENT # 349531 

‘ri 
Dated this ri  day of  Pei -o-S1F 

Attest: 

STATE OF MONTANA ) 

tioothbri. SS' 
County of 

20,21. By:  "Live i• 

Clievrol .bcyer, 

Subscribed and sworn to before me, a Notary Public in and for the State of Montan 

this day of  OM4,  ,2023
(SEAL) - 

Notary Publ.
Residin 
My comm s' ion expires  ariab 



WAIVER OF PROTEST 

For consideration of annexation to the City of Hardin, the undersigned, owner of the 
hereinafter described property, does hereby waive the right to protest the creation of one or 
more special improvement districts for the construction of streets, curbs and gutters, 

sidewalks, driveways, street lights, storm or sanitary sewer main serving the area in which 

the annexation is located, water distribution lines, park maintenance, and other incidental 
improvements the City of Hardin may require. 

This waiver shall run with the land and shall be binding upon the undersigned, its successors 

and assigns, and the same shall be recorded in the office of the County Clerk and Recorder of 

Big Horn County, Montana. 

The property hereinabove mentioned is more particularly described as follows, to-wit: 

THAT PART OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 1 SOUTH, RANGE 33 EAST, OF THE 
PRINCIPAL MONTANA MERIDIAN, IN BIG HORN COUNTY, MONTANA, DESCRIBED AS 
TRACT 2 OF CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY #77 AMENDED (CO) ON FILE IN THE OFFICE OF 
THE CLERK AND RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY, UNDER DOCUMENT # 349531 

Dated this day of  ( biLe , 201263 

Attest: 

STA 1E OF MONTANA ) 

County of 
. ss• 
)

Subscribed and sworn to before me, a Notary Public in and for the State of Mon 

this 4 day of  akiher  , 20 

(SEAL) 
Notary Public fo 
Residing at 
My commission ex.-p 



Application for Annexation Item 7- Cost Estimate 
COST OF EXTENDING SERVICES 

Date Prepared: October 19, 2023 
Lot Size: NA Sq. Ft. or 

This is an engineers estimate for the purpose of answering Item 7 of the included application. 
The cost of extending all services, public and private will be paid for by the developer, Maverik, Inc. 
Timeframe for proposed utility construction: 41. 2 weeks. 
Timeframe for entire project: +1.6 months 

Components 

Acres 

Item 
No. Description Quantity 

Unit 
Price Cost 

(Public) 
1 

,Water 
6" PVC Fire Line 41 LF $55.00 LF $2,255.00 

2 r Single Service 46 LF $4.00 LF $184.00 
2" PVC Service Tap 1 EA $4,600.00 LF $4,600.00 

4 2" Water Meter Vault 1 EA $2,500.00 EA $2,500.00 
5 8"x8" 6" Tee 1 EA $1,200.00 EA $1,200.00 
6 6" Gate Valve 1 EA $1,500.00 EA $1,500.00 
7 Fire Hydrant 1 EA $5,000.00 EA $5,000.00 

Subtotal $17,239.00 
Itym 2102121 

8 6" PVC Sewer Line 40 LF $55.00 LF $2,200.00 
8 Connection to Existing Sewer Manhole I EA $1,800.00 EA $1,800.00 

Subtotal $4,000.00 
GRAND TOTAL $21,239.00 



INTERSTATE 90 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

TRACT 2 OF CERTIFICATE OF 
SURVEY NO. 77 AMENDED 
LOCATED IN THE SE 1/4 OF THE 
NW 1/4 OF SECTION 14, TOI S, 
R33E, P.M.M., BIG HORN COUNTY, 
MONTANA 

COUNTY ZONING LEGEND 

C2 

I I 

on mai Num moo um Now 
EXISTING MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY 

PROPOSED ANNEXATION 
BOUNDARY 

300 800 

IN FEET 

M
A

V
E

R
IK

, I
N

C
 

H
A

R
D

IN
, M

O
N

T
A

N
A

 

0E81 

ife , • 
:LJARZC 

ZECKEn 

" 

Pry BV DILE B1' 

C
E

R
T

. O
F

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

 N
O

. 7
7 

A
N

N
E

X
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
P

 

PROJECT NUMBER 
2023-078 

SHEET NUMBER 

1 OF 1 

DRAWING NUMBER 

EX 1 
COPYRIGHT 2023 0 



PROPOSED ANNEXATION 
BOUNDARY 

S89° 35' 17"E 

C.4 

H
IG

H
W

AY
 4

7
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

TRACT 2 OF CERTIFICATE OF 
SURVEY NO. 77 AMENDED 
LOCATED IN THE SE 1/4 OF THE 
NW 1/4 OF SECTION 14, TO1S, 
R33E, P.M.M., BIG HORN COUNTY, 
MONTANA 

INTERSTATE 90 

200 400 

IN FEET 

M
A

V
E

R
IK

, I
N

C
. 

TE 

„ttZe 

tiTe 
REV CATE C11140 BY 

C
E

R
T

. O
F

 S
U

R
V

E
Y

 N
O

. 7
7 

A
N

N
E

X
A

T
IO

N
 M

A
P

 

PROJECT NUMBER 
2023-078 

SHEET NUMBER 

2 OF 2 

DRAWING NUMBER 

EX 2 
COPYRIGHT 20230 



j. 

a 

Drama dm JO 
Metal Ise AV 
Ms Nana 

Mama, Fa 

Maar MY anita Mbar 

nuic 

25 Sep, 2023 
SNIT 

Ex 



LEGEND 

• PROPERTY CORNER, FOUNDER DESCRIBED 

O PROPERTY ODRNER. SET BAP REBARIM PEC CAP 

  SURVEY BOUNDARY 

EXISTRO PROPERTY LINE 

— — — — — — EASEMENT UNE 

  — —  RIGHT-OFANAT LINE 

= ,000,7 RECORD DISTANCE 

T 0 58935' 17"E 

8 — EVSDND 20,610E7 
UTILITY EASEMENT 

efe 

ROW MONUMENT 7-

/90 

EEC 

S8935' 17"E 

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY NO. 77, 2ND AMENDED 
BEING TRACT 2 OF CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY NO. 77, AMENDED 

LOCATED IN THE SE 1/4 OF THE NW 1/4 OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 01 SOUTH, RANGE 33 EAST, P.M.M., 
BIG HORN COUNTY, MONTANA 

PREPARED FOR : RICHARD A DORN 

PREPARED BY : PERFORMANCE ENGINEERING, LLC 

0,309 :25 
(RO.W. DEDICATION) 

5941490 FT 
GM ACRES 

Traci :2A 
4050S1 SOFT 
9.313 ACRES 

= 959 99) 

559.00 

I 
I 

656.13 is f..9 

EXISTING AREA TIED EASEMENT 
PER DOS ff77.141DT11 VARIES 

q0 I Ir t

0,51\05kC. 
\ 

I 8'

S
TA

TE
 H

IG
H

W
AY

 4
7

 

PG 
ERING 

PURPOSE OF SURVEY : RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION 

DATE OF SURVEY : OCTOBER 2023 

VICINITY MAP 
nor To goers 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND OWNER CERTIFICATION 

The undersigned ovmer(s) do hereby codify that they have cause le be mimed and plotted in to lots. blocks. greets, andolhor tliyidonssoddeallostloas, se Nom on this plat hereunto holodsd, a tract of land dared. as Mho.: 

.ing Traci of Owitione of Survey No. AnoWed Os. No. 341•211),Sheareollelw SE 1M of the NW 1moi Cr05014 Townie 01 E EI.RSIRESSEad•EMIT., DR Pr,, 009]iIIE.MWI9It8. 

Rid Owl main. IN.2INwaEIU,ssLORN.315rnIEnS.iem,arhtn 

The undarekrad hereby orgilsethet the purpose or this am, lab dada...GB.1m.y and Isthmian sump Rom subdadalen nvimpuramd T8-3-201(I6M1), MCA. 

Iliis sung le nol sulifoel kr review by the DepaOneril of ErtflreingleNtol Clodly pommies 1.1420(1)(a). MCA. 

IT eh Sol A Dorn 

STATE OF MONTANA 

County ol 

. beta Fre, a Notary PuNic In and for the SAsto of Monier., personally apnea ImM A Dom, known to me to be the persons weci shined the foregoing instrurnen10
aidt. o ecMowleddAt 

 0 
me lhat they executed tha2.1 re.. my lianti and seal the day end year herein above 00en. 

Nolary Pubic in and Mr Me State of MonOna 
Ptinted Name 
Residing at 
My commission expires 

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEYOR 

I, the undereigned Mark W. 10drin9s. do Web, earth Ilad MY away wee clone under my direcl supeniMon of a toot of land located • Ihe SE 1/4 of the NW1r4 of Section 14, Township 01 South, Range 33 East P.M.M.. Big Horn 
County. Kneen°, sMdtract being Trwil ef Cerlflode of Sunray No. 77 Arrestled (Do, No. 349S31) 

Sell Ira! contains a gross area of 10.219 acres, and a net area of 9.313 acres. more or less. 

Sa.id bad ie ea al In al segments and dB...NW .. ,erd elfloment en*. 00990. 

This euney vas =dueled In a0eladane•with Ihe provls[ons of lhe Montana Subdivision end Planing AM Sec•ns. T0-3-101 thru 263E05, MCA. 

Registered Land Surveyor 
State of Montana 

ERRORS AND OMISSIONS REVIEW 

I hereby oertify that I haws examined the foregoing plat for errors and miss-fens In <amputations and draining. 

0054 ,94 494 51  20 . 

ROW 
MONUMENT 

Exa(Tinng Land Surveyor 

CERRFICATE OF COUNTY TREASURER 

I herehy certify, pursuant 0 Section TO3.202(3), MCA, ttol the e000men1•1119•1 b• 1 dahl ea...ad rod Get ell Oral rmiEer 

Dated this day of 20 

by Horn County Treasurer 
DeFuT 

CERTIFICATE OF COUNTY ATTORNEY 

This document 555 00W reviewed by go Counly Attorney end Oar:v*90W labium. 

09154 1195 day of  20 . 

Reviewed by 

nle enema end leviadan the Medium teen pit. 

BASIS OF SEARING 

The bearings Omen as 'Timmy en dotted from • T11.10/00•Mereeler 
projection 090 parematomaefollowo 

Latitude of Origin 44. 46 GT 2.1 
Longitude of Origin 10). 45' 012' • 
Mapping Scale Owen 1.000149 

Dislances shown hereon ere equal to ground distances. 

Unless otherwise noted. record dislances ingemen found monuments are 
within local accepted practke. SHEET 1 OF 1 



RESOLUTION NO. 2355 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HARDIN, MONTANA APPROVING APPLICATIONS 
FOR LICENSE TO SERVE BEER, BEER AND WINE, OR LIQUOR 

WHEREAS, the City of Hardin, Montana (the "City") has the authority to issue 
licenses for the sale of Beer, Beer and Wine, or Liquor within the City Limits; 

WHEREAS, the City is in receipt of applications from numerous business for an 
annual license to sell Beer, Beer and Wine, and/or Liquor within the City Limits of the 
City for the 2024 calendar year, along with an application fee; 

WHEREAS, the applicants have provided proof of a State of Montana license to 
sell beer for on or off premises consumption at their respective locations; 

WHEREAS, the applicants have provided proof of a State of Montana license to 
sell beer and table wine for on or off premises consumption at their respective locations; 

WHEREAS, the applicants have provided proof of a State of Montana license to 
sell liquor for on or off premises consumption at their respective locations; 

WHEREAS, the City has investigated the applicants and has determined that the 
applicants meet the requirements of City Code of City of Hardin Section 5-5-1 et seq. 
and/or Section 5-6-1 et seq.; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council (the "Council") of the City 
as follows: 

A. The Council finds that the following applicants are proper and suitable 
persons and should be permitted to carry on such business: 

1. Lucky Lil's Casino, 1012 N. Crawford Ave. 
2. Outlaws Café and Casino, LLC d/b/a 3 Brothers Bistro, 316 N. Center 

Ave. 
3. B&H Corp/Jackrabbit Red's, 315 13th St. W. 
4. Brass Rail Tavern, LLC, 317 N. Center Ave. 
5. Silver Fox Casino/ Little Big Man Pizza, 605 N. Center Ave. 
6. Town and County Supply Assn. 1223 N. Crawford Ave. 
7. Loves Travel Stop #679, 1270 N. State Highway 47 
8. Pizza Hut, 219 14th Street West 
9. EagleCav, LLC d/b/a Reese and Lynn's Superfoods, 901 N. Center 

Ave. 
10. Big Rig Casino #8679, 1270 N. Highway 47, Suite A 
11.Good 2 Go Stores, LLC, 1600 N. Crawford Ave. 
12. Four Aces Bar and Lounge, 10 3rd StW. 

13. Far West Casino, 1320 N. Crawford Ave. 

1 of 2 



B The applicants are granted licenses to serve beer, beer and wine, and/or 
liquor, as requested in their applications within the city limits for calendar year 
2024. 

C. It is further resolved that if additional complete applications are received 
before noon December 29, 2023, the City shall fully investigate each 
application and grant the licenses if it is determined that each application is 
sufficient and each applicant is qualified to receive said license. 

D. Applications received after noon on December 29, 2023, shall be presented 
to the City Council for approval at the next regular meeting of the City Council 
in January of 2023. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Hardin, Montana, and 
APPROVED this day of December, 2023. 

YEA VOTES NAY VOTES 

CITY OF HARDIN 

BY: ATTEST: 
Mayor City Clerk 

2 of 2 



MAYOR 
Joe Purcell 

POLICE CHIEF 
Paul M. George Jr. 

The eitg of PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 

Jtoretatut 

Michael Hurff Jr. 

FINANCE OFFICER/CITY CLERK 
Andrew Lehr 

lev Cleanmup) 
December 26th - December 29111

Please have items out early 

December 26th

Christmas Tree Pickup) 
January 2"d - 5th 

City will be picking up items that are placed in the alley away 

from trash cans, not obstructing entry way through alley. 

-Branches need to be less than 8 feet-

(NO tires. NO appliances that contain Freon.) 

The City of Hardin would like to take this opportunity during the alley clean-up to remind 
residents of the refuse ordinances 08-1-12 thru 08-1-20: 08-1-12: Removal of Bulky Items not Required, 
08-1-13: Certain Matter Not to be Placed in Receptacles, 08-1-14: Unauthorized Use of Receptacles 
Prohibited, 08-1-17: Parking Interfering with Containers Prohibited, 08-1-18: Damaging Containers 
Prohibited, 08-1-19: Doors and Lids to be Kept Closed. 

Thank you for allowing us the opportunity to serve the citizens of Hardin. Please follow us on 
the website, www.hardinmt.com, for extended details of the ordinances. Please contact us by phone, 
email, or simply stop by and let us know how we can improve our services. 

City Hall at 665-9292 

City of Hardin 406 N Cheyenne Hardin MT 59034 Phone (406) 665-9292 Fax (406) 665-2719 



MAYOR 
Joe Purcell 

POLICE CHIEF 
Paul M. George Jr. 

Az &V cif PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 

Montana 

CALL FOR BIDS 

CITY OF HARDIN, MONTANA 

Hardin Volunteer Fire Department 

Michael Hurff Jr. 

FINANCE OFFICER/CITY CLERK 
Andrew Lehr 

Notice is Hereby Given, by the Council of the City of Hardin, Montana, that on the 9th day of January, 2024 at 

3:00 p.m. at City Hall, located at 406 North Cheyenne Avenue, Hardin, Montana 59034 it will consider all 

sealed bids received for bids to furnish the City of Hardin and the City of Hardin Volunteer Fire Department 

with Thirteen new SCBA approved to NIOSH 42 part 84 and be certified to NFPA 1981 2018 Edition. 

Sealed bids shall be submitted to the Finance Officer at the City of Hardin, Montana on or before 9th day of 

January, 2024, at 3:00 p.m., at City Hall, 406 N. Cheyenne Avenue, Hardin, Montana, 59034, Hardin, 
Montana, 59034 at which time and place all bids will be publicly opened and read aloud. 

Details and specifications may be obtained at the office of the Finance Officer of the City of Hardin located 

at 406 N. Cheyenne Avenue, Hardin, Montana, 59034, 406-665-9293, Monday through Friday between the 
hours of 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 

Bid security in the amount equal to at least ten percent (10%) of the bid made payable to the City of Hardin 
must accompany each bid. The bid security must be either (1) lawful monies of the United States, (2), cashiers 
check, certified check, bank money order, or bank draft drawn and issued by a national banking corporation, 
incorporated under the laws of the State of Montana, or (3) a bid bond executed by a surety corporation 
authorized to do business in the State of Montana. 

Each bidder is deemed to covenant that if he is awarded the contract, he will within fifteen (15) days from 
written notice of award, enter into a contract and execute and deliver a bond to the satisfaction and approval 
of the City Council in the form and manner provided for in Title 18, Chapter 2, MCA and in the event that said 
Bidder fails, neglects, or refuses to enter into the contract or supply the necessary bond in the amount therein 
mentioned, the bid bond shall be declared to forfeited to said City of shall be collected by it and paid into the 
general fund. 

The City of Hardin reserves the right to reject any or all bids and to hold bids, to waive informalities, to 
postpone the award of the contract for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days and to accept the bid that is in 
the best interest of the City of Hardin. 

SCBA 

Dated this 12th day of December, 2023 

Andrew Lehr, Finance Officer 

Published: December 14 & 21, 2023 

City of Hardin 406 N Cheyenne Hardin MT 59034 Phone (406) 665-9292 Fax (406) 665-2719 


